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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: We are going to

          3  open up the Subcommittee on Land Use, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses. We have a varied and lengthy

          5  agenda today. Joined by my colleagues on the

          6  Committee and Subcommittee, Chair of the Land Use

          7  Committee, June Margolin Eisland of the Bronx is in

          8  attendance, as well as Council Member Adolpho

          9  Carrion, Jr., of the Bronx, Council Member Bill

         10  Perkins of Manhattan, Councilman Michael Abel of

         11  Queens, and we want to welcome everyone back. Even

         12  though the Committee never really recesses for the

         13  summer, those at home who were watching Crosswalks

         14  are our summer replacement of the Charter Revision

         15  Commission, but we are back.

         16                 We are going to hear a number of

         17  items today, I will go over the agenda and tell you

         18  what is on and what is off and what I believe we

         19  have testimony on. We have testimony on all items,

         20  but controversy on some.

         21                 Land Use 503 in Queens Community

         22  Board No. 4, in Council Member Helen M. Marshall's

         23  district, Landmarks Preservation Commission

         24  designation of Fire Engine Company 289 and Ladder

         25  Company 138.
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          2                 Land Use 507, Manhattan Community

          3  Board 1, Council Member Freed's district. Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission designation of the American

          5  Track Society Building, which is on Nassau Street,

          6  which I believe there may be testimony on from some

          7  interested residents.

          8                 Land Use 509, in Queens Community

          9  Board No. 7. Council Member Abel's district, which

         10  is the Fort Totten Historic District, will be laid

         11  over, and I believe the Committee will be visiting

         12  Fort Totten in the very near future.

         13                 Land Use 510. Manhattan Community

         14  Board 2. Landmarks designation of the NoHo Historic

         15  District, in the district of Council Members Kathryn

         16  Freed and Margarita Lopez, will be laid over, and,

         17  again, I believe the Committee will be touring that

         18  district in the near future before the vote.

         19                 Land Use 515, Brooklyn Community

         20  Board 1. The Williamsburg Branch of the Brooklyn

         21  Public Library, Landmarks designation in Council

         22  Member Kenneth Fisher's district.

         23                 Land Use 516. Brooklyn Community

         24  Board 2. Also in Council Member Fisher's district. A

         25  siting application by the Law Department, and the
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          2  Department of Citywide Administrative Services, for

          3  a property acquisition that is a warehouse. There is

          4  some concern about that matter and I believe we will

          5  be hearing some from information from DCAS before

          6  the close of business today.

          7                 A preconsidered item in Manhattan

          8  Community Board 1 in Council Member Kathryn Freed's

          9  district, the Park Row Building.

         10                 A preconsidered item in Brooklyn

         11  Community Board 4 in Council Member Robles'

         12  District.  A school playground siting by the School

         13  Construction Authority for PS 274. And after all of

         14  those items, we will then have an oversight hearing

         15  with the Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises, to

         16  talk about the placement of Cable TV boxes on City

         17  sidewalks.

         18                 With that, what I am going to do is,

         19  since we have a variety of kinds of testimony, let's

         20  do at least Land Use 503 first, and I am going to

         21  ask Jane Cowan to come up and testify.

         22                 Identify yourself for the record,

         23  please.

         24                 MS. COWAN: Good morning, Council

         25  members. My name is Jane Cowan, Community Liaison
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          2  for the Landmarks Preservation Commission. I am here

          3  today to testify on the Landmarks Preservation

          4  Commission's designation of Fire Company 289, Ladder

          5  Company 138, located at 97-28 43rd Avenue as a New

          6  York City Landmark.

          7                 On January 12th, 1999, the Commission

          8  held a public hearing on the proposed designation of

          9  Fire Engine Company 289, Ladder Company 138. The

         10  hearing was duly advertised according to the

         11  provisions of law. A representative of the

         12  Historical Districts Council spoke in favor of the

         13  designation. The Commission received two letters in

         14  support of designation from the Coalition of United

         15  Residents for a Safer Community and Historic

         16  Districts Council. There were no speakers in

         17  opposition to designation.

         18                 The New York City Fire Department had

         19  previously indicated support for designation. Built

         20  in 1912 to 1914, Fire Engine Company 289 is one of

         21  Corona's most prominent public buildings. Designed

         22  by the architectural firm Satterly and Boyd, the

         23  French Renaissance style structure was erected as

         24  part of an ambitious campaign to bring professional

         25  fire service to Queens, following the consolidation
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          2  of Greater New York in 1989.

          3                 Part of the earliest group of station

          4  designs introduced during the automobile age, it

          5  features side by side apparatus bays specifically

          6  designed for motorized vehicles. Notable features

          7  include the use of tapestry brick, bronze and marble

          8  medallions, decorative iron work, and a steeply

          9  pitched mansard roof clad in gray slate.

         10                 Standing amidst single-family

         11  residences and small industrial buildings, Fire

         12  Engine Company 289 is an outstanding example of

         13  early twentieth century civic architecture,

         14  symbolizing greater New York's commitment to the

         15  citizens of Corona.

         16                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         17  the designation of fire Engine Company 289, Ladder

         18  Company 138.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

         21                 Mr. Lang, do you want to testify on

         22  this one as well?

         23                 MR. LANG: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.

         24  I am Roger Lang, representing the New York Landmarks

         25  Conservancy, and I will be brief.
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          2                 I just wanted to add the

          3  Conservancy's support to this designation. We laud

          4  the Fire Department of New York for its support and

          5  its stewardship of these find buildings and the

          6  Landmarks Preservation Commission for designating

          7  civic architecture.

          8                 We think it is important that as the

          9  Landmarks inventory grows, that it represents all of

         10  the cross-section of the City's fine architecture

         11  and public buildings certainly deserve their

         12  recognition for their beauty and historic

         13  significance, as well as their continuing service to

         14  the citizens of the City of New York.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Roger, since you

         17  are up here, the agenda should have been rejiggered

         18  today so we did this in some sort of order, do you

         19  want to talk about the other two that apparently

         20  have little opposition, which is Land Use 515 and

         21  the preconsidered item on the Park Row building?

         22                 MR. LANG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23  The New York Landmarks Conservancy strongly supports

         24  the designation of both the American Track Society

         25  Building and the Park Row Building as individual
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          2  exterior landmarks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Let me just point

          4  out that we are going to talk about the Track

          5  Society Building separate because there is some

          6  controversy, but go on.

          7                 MR. LANG: I am sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: But if you want

          9  to talk about the Williamsburg Library.

         10                 MR. LANG: The Park Row building and

         11  the Queens Library --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Yes.

         13                 MR. LANG: My apologies.

         14                 Let me speak to the Park Row building

         15  first. This is one of the preeminent skyscrapers of

         16  Lower Manhattan, a building which upon its

         17  construction was the tallest in the world, it is

         18  extraordinary in its architectural distinction and

         19  one of the few remaining such buildings yet to be

         20  designated as individual landmarks.

         21                 The Conservancy strongly lauds the

         22  Landmarks Preservation Commission for its initiative

         23  to bring the great buildings of Lower Manhattan

         24  under its protection, and we laud this Committee for

         25  being unswerving in its support of those
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          2  designations, and we think that this one is

          3  absolutely critical. It is perhaps the greatest yet

          4  unprotected building in Lower Manhattan, and there

          5  should be no doubt that this deserves landmark

          6  status.

          7                 With respect to the Williamsburg

          8  Branch, again, the question of designating public

          9  architecture and civic architecture is fundamental

         10  to the bread for the inventory of the City's

         11  landmarks, and this one is an extraordinary example

         12  architecturally and historically, which has been in

         13  service to Williamsburg for most of the century. So

         14  we urge you to designate both of these buildings and

         15  look forward to return to speak for the American

         16  Track Society.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you. We

         19  have to point out to other members of the Committee

         20  the Park Row Building, you can see it from the

         21  window here.

         22                 Ms. Cowan, I apologize. Do you want

         23  to come back up and talk about those other two,

         24  since our agenda today is varied and covers a lot of

         25  different topics, some of controversy and some of
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          2  not? Park Row and Williamsburg Library.

          3                 MS. COWAN: Good morning, again. Jane

          4  Cowan, representing the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission, to speak on our designation of the Park

          6  Row building, visible through the window, 15 Park

          7  Row, as a New York City landmark.

          8                 On July 14th, 1998, the Commission

          9  held a public hearing on proposed designation of the

         10  Park Row building. The hearing had been duly

         11  advertised in accordance with the provisions of law.

         12  Five witnesses spoke in favor of designation,

         13  including representatives of the Historic Districts

         14  Council, the Municipal Arts Society and the New York

         15  Landmarks Conservancy, who spoke here today as well.

         16  A representative of the owner supported designation.

         17  There were no speakers in opposition to designation

         18  and the Commission has received several letters in

         19  support.

         20                 The 30-story, 391 foot high Park Row

         21  Building, the tallest building in New York was the

         22  tallest building in New York and one of the tallest

         23  structures in the world, between 1899, the year of

         24  its completion, and 1908. Located on Park Row across

         25  from City Hall Park, the Park Row building remains
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          2  by virtue of its height, the twin cupola-topped

          3  towers, one of the most distinctive buildings in

          4  Lower Manhattan.

          5                 It is one of several surviving late

          6  nineteenth century office towers on a street that

          7  became known as Newspaper Row, the center of

          8  newspaper publishing in New York City from the 1840s

          9  to the 1920s. The building housed the offices of the

         10  associated press news agency, which had been

         11  incorporated in New York in 1900, as well as the

         12  headquarters, of August Belmont's Interborough Rapid

         13  Transit Company.

         14                 The building's architect, R.H.

         15  Robertson, who was prominent for his institutional

         16  and commercial buildings, designed the Park Row

         17  building using a number of class elements, including

         18  four large sculpted figures set on overscaled

         19  brackets, huge columns and pilasters, as well as

         20  several projecting ornamental balconies.

         21                 The two towers that rise above the

         22  crowning cornice are capped by ornamented domes,

         23  which immediately distinguished this structure when

         24  it was added to the skyline of New York City at the

         25  turn of the century.
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          2                 Early twentieth century artists

          3  admired the shape of the Park Row building; Alvin

          4  Langdon Coburn and Charles Sheeler featured it in

          5  their photographs. The building remains in use as a

          6  commercial office building.

          7                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          8  the designation of the Park Row building.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 Now for the Williamsburg Branch.

         11                 My name is Jane Cowan, Community

         12  Liaison for the Landmarks Preservation Commission. I

         13  am here today to testify on the Landmarks

         14  Commission's designation of the Williamsburg Branch

         15  of the Brooklyn Public Library, located at 240

         16  Division Avenue, in Brooklyn, as a New York City

         17  landmark.

         18                 On May 5th, 1998, the Commission held

         19  a public hearing on the proposed designation as a

         20  landmark of the Williamsburg Branch. The hearing was

         21  duly advertised in accordance with the provisions of

         22  law. There were no speakers at the hearing. A letter

         23  in support of designation was received from

         24  Assemblyman Joseph R. Lentol.

         25                 Opened in 1905, the Williamsburg
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          2  Branch of the Brooklyn Public Library was the second

          3  Brooklyn Library Building completed with funds from

          4  the large gift given by Andrew Carnegie to New York

          5  City in 1901.

          6                 Of the $5.2 million given by Carnegie

          7  for the construction of new library buildings, 1.6

          8  million was earmarked to build 20 branches in

          9  Brooklyn.

         10                 The Williamsburg site was among the

         11  first chosen because of the huge population in the

         12  district and the tremendous need for a new facility

         13  there. Richard A. Walker of the architectural firm

         14  of Walker and Morris was one of five well-known

         15  architects, all with Beaux Arts training, chosen to

         16  design the Brooklyn branches.

         17                 One of four Walker created, the large

         18  brick and limestone Williamsburg Branch with a

         19  French-inspired design was called the "finest of all

         20  the branch buildings." Situated on a triangular plot

         21  of land at the intersection of three streets, its

         22  broad Y plan, which includes a rounded rear pavilion

         23  housing the book stacks, is extremely well suited to

         24  this unusual site.

         25                 The Commission urges you to affirm
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          2  the designation of the Williamsburg Branch of the

          3  Brooklyn Public Library. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

          5                 Are there any questions from members

          6  of the Committee?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, I just

          8  want to get sort of like a little bit of information

          9  concerning the Park Row building.

         10                 Just for my own sort of education

         11  about this process, this is a privately-owned

         12  building? Do you know?

         13                 MR. LANG: Yes.

         14                 MS. COWAN: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, is there

         16  some sort of negotiation or agreement that goes on

         17  with the owner and the City when they make these

         18  designations?

         19                 MS. COWAN: No, the law permits the

         20  City to designate landmarks, the Commission in fact

         21  investigates the landmark, holds a hearing on the

         22  proposed designation, the owner is in fact notified

         23  and may come in speak in favor, may speak in

         24  opposition, but the Commission is empowered to

         25  designate worthy landmarks. They do so, it is then
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          2  forwarded to us and to City Planning, for City

          3  Planning to review it against the master plan, at

          4  which point when the Commission designates it is a

          5  landmark, until and unless the Council decides

          6  otherwise. But the agreement of the owner is not a

          7  requirement.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: One or two

          9  other quick questions.

         10                 So, the benefits of this wonderful

         11  designation to the owner are, the benefits, one, are

         12  that they are a public spirited person, two, that

         13  they may be eligible for certain tax benefits, and

         14  tax credit programs, if they do renovation and

         15  rehabilitation work, they know that they have a

         16  beautiful building, they may in fact qualify for

         17  other private or not-for-profit monies that may be

         18  available.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And are there

         20  any restrictions to the owner?

         21                 MS. COWAN: Yes. There are

         22  restrictions on their altering the exterior, if it

         23  is an exterior landmark of the building, until and

         24  unless they receive the appropriate approvals, which

         25  may be just a Certificate of No Effect, or it may be
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          2  something more substantial if the renovation or the

          3  work on the building is more substantial.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, I assume

          5  the owner is happy with this designation?

          6                 MS. COWAN: We have received nothing

          7  to indicate the owner's opposition.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Are there other

         11  comments, questions from the Committee?

         12                 Okay, thank you.

         13                 I am going to call up now another

         14  item that I believe has no controversy, and that is

         15  the public siting item for the School Construction

         16  Authority, the preconsidered item of Brooklyn

         17  Community Board 4, School Construction Authority

         18  playground expansion for PS 274 in Council Member

         19  Roble's district.

         20                 MS. PRISHIVALEO: Good morning,

         21  Chairman Sabini, and members of the Council. My name

         22  is Geraldine Prisivalko, I am Section Chief for Site

         23  Planning and Administration at the Division of

         24  School Facilities. I am here with my colleague,

         25  Tammy Rachelson, Real Estate Manager, at the School
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          2  Construction Authority.

          3                 We are presenting for your

          4  consideration and for your approval a site plan for

          5  a new -- well, a new playground expansion for

          6  Primary School 274 Brooklyn, which is located in

          7  Community School District 32, Bushwick Community

          8  Planning District Tour.

          9                 The proposed playground expansion

         10  would occupy a site at the corner of Broadway and

         11  Prishusco Street on a block that is bounded overall

         12  by Broadway, Prishusco, DeKalb, or as you know, at

         13  Kosciasco (phonetic), DeKalb and Bushwick Avenues.

         14  This is Block number 3241, lots 63, 64, 67, 68, 69,

         15  70 and 71. Comprising the sites it is approximately

         16  18,000 square feet an area and adjacent directly to

         17  the school playground now, which is 30,000 square

         18  feet an area. It had been larger by about 18,000

         19  square feet an area before we placed a mini school

         20  on it.

         21                 These lots are vacant, they will

         22  bring the size of the playground up to 48,000 square

         23  feet. The SCA hopes to commence construction and do

         24  it over a six-month period in the year 2000.

         25                 The site was reviewed by Community
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          2  School Board 32, which held a public hearing on

          3  January 21st, 1999, and submitted supportive

          4  comments. Community Board 4 submitted comments on

          5  April 6th, 1999, in support and the City Planning

          6  Commission submitted comments and support on January

          7  5th, 1999. Now we look for your support. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you. Lot 67

          9  of block 3241, according to our application, is not

         10  part of this. You mentioned 67.

         11                 MS. PRISHIVALKO: 63, 64, 66, 67, 68,

         12  69, 70, 71. It is eight lots in total.

         13                 MS. RACHELSON: 67 is part of it. It

         14  is eight City-owned lots, it is on the letter, the

         15  submittal we have made.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, thank you.

         17                 Questions?

         18                 Okay, thank you.

         19                 I am now going to take the public

         20  siting item in Brooklyn, Land Use 516, which we may

         21  or may not have some resolution on, that is in

         22  Brooklyn Community Board 2, Council Member Kenneth

         23  K. Fisher's district. It is application by the Law

         24  Department and the Department of Citywide

         25  Administrative Services for acquisition of a
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          2  property at 50 Washington Street for use as a

          3  warehouse.

          4                 Al, does anyone want to testify? Do

          5  you want to hold off on this?

          6                 Identify yourself for the record.

          7                 MR. MULLEN: Good morning, Council

          8  Members. My name is Al Mullen, from the Mayor's

          9  Office of Legislative Affairs. I am just waiting for

         10  DCAS to come back so they can make a statement

         11  regarding this item, so if you can just hold off for

         12  a couple minutes, I would appreciate it.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Very good. Then

         15  we will proceed with Land Use 507. Manhattan

         16  Community Board 1, Council Member Freed's district,

         17  the American Tract Society Building, and I will call

         18  Jane Cowan up again. We have Roger Lang again and

         19  also Commissioner Howard Hornstein, and I believe

         20  Council Member Freed is going to want to say

         21  something when she gets here.

         22                 Okay.

         23                 MS. COWAN: Good morning. Jane Cowan,

         24  I am the Community Liaison for the Landmarks

         25  Preservation Commission. I am here again today to
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          2  testify on the Landmarks Preservation Commission's

          3  designation of the American Tract Society Building,

          4  located at 150 Nassau Street, as a New York City

          5  Landmark.

          6                 On March 16th, 1999, the Commission

          7  held a public hearing on the proposed designation of

          8  the American Tract Society Building. The hearing had

          9  been duly advertised in accordance with the

         10  provisions of law. A representative of the

         11  building's owner stated that they were not opposed

         12  to the designation. Three people spoke in favor of

         13  designation, including representatives of the New

         14  York Landmarks Conservancy, and the Historic

         15  District's Council.

         16                 In addition, the Commission received

         17  several letters in support of designation.

         18                 The American Tract Society Building

         19  was constructed in 1894, '95 to the design of

         20  Architect R.H. Robertson, who was known for his

         21  churches and institutional and office buildings in

         22  New York and the Park Row building. It is one of the

         23  earliest extant steel skeletal framed skyscrapers in

         24  New York, partially of curtain wall construction.

         25  This was also one of the City's tallest and largest
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          2  skyscrapers upon its completion.

          3                 Twenty full stories high and clad and

          4  rusticated gray westerly granite, gray havistraw

          5  Roman brick and buff-colored terra cotta, the

          6  building was constructed with a U-shaped plan,

          7  having an exterior light court. Combining elements

          8  of the Romanesque and renaissance revival styles,

          9  the design, with two similar principal facades, has

         10  an overall tripartite vertical scheme, but is also

         11  arranged in six horizontal sections.

         12                 A three-story arcade open at the top

         13  and with winged carryiads at the upper corner

         14  surmounts the western half of the building. A

         15  three-story hipped roof tower rises through the

         16  arcade creating a picturesque feature in the skyline

         17  of Lower Manhattan. The building's visibility is

         18  heightened by its corner location near City Hall

         19  Park and adjacent to printing house square.

         20                 The American Tract Society founded in

         21  1825, to publish and distribute religious tracts and

         22  literature, built on this site that same year. It

         23  emerged as one of the largest American publishers

         24  prior to the civil war. The vicinity of Park Row and

         25  Nassau Street, the center of newspaper publishing in
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          2  New York from the 1840s to the 1920s was redeveloped

          3  beginning in the 1870s with a series of important

          4  tall office buildings.

          5                 The American Tract Society Building,

          6  planned as a speculative venture when the Society

          7  was experiencing financial decline, was intended to

          8  provide it with a large rental income to continue

          9  its mission.

         10                 The Society moved out, however, in

         11  1914 and lost its building through foreclosure. The

         12  lower portion was leased to the publishers of the

         13  New York Sun, from 1914 to 1919.

         14                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         15  the designation of the American Tract Society

         16  Building.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: You mentioned it

         18  was designed by the same person as the Park Row

         19  building. Now, we lost the building on the corner of

         20  Park Row and I guess it is Fulton --

         21                 MS. COWAN: The Clarke Building.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Right. Was that

         23  designed by the same person as well?

         24                 MS. COWAN: I don't believe so. But I

         25  can double check on that for you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

          3                 Mr. Lang, come on up.

          4                 MR. LANG: Good morning, again, Mr.

          5  Chairman, members of the Committee.

          6                 The answer to your previous question,

          7  the Clarke Building was designed by another pair or

          8  architects, Delemos and Cortaise, who also designed

          9  the Macy's Building and Herald Square, primarily

         10  commercial architects. But you are dealing with two

         11  buildings this morning by the same architect, R.H.

         12  Robertson, an important figure in late 19th and

         13  early 20th century architecture, and an important

         14  contributor to one of the things that we all prized

         15  the most about downtown, and that is the skyline.

         16                 Robertson's tops of his buildings are

         17  among the most flamboyant and interesting of tops,

         18  and in both the Park Row Building we have the twin

         19  domes, and this building you have two

         20  extraordinarily picturesque contributors to the New

         21  York Skyline.

         22                 It is not for that reason alone that

         23  we urge you to designate it a landmark. This

         24  building is an important part of the history of

         25  Lower Manhattan, and in particular the area around
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          2  Nassau Street and Park Row which became known as

          3  Newspaper Row, and it is no accident that this

          4  housed in its inception a printing company.

          5                 The building was identified as worthy

          6  of designation by a number of surveys undertaken

          7  over the last two decades, both by the Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commission, the Lower Manhattan

          9  Cultural Council and the New York Landmarks

         10  Conservancy, all noted it's important stylistically

         11  and technically. It is no accident that this

         12  skyscraper is built of steel. It is the material

         13  that made it possible for us to build skyscrapers

         14  and for New York to boast one of the great

         15  inventories of skyscrapers of any city in the world.

         16                 Not only is this building's past

         17  important, but we think its future is, and part of

         18  the story about Lower Manhattan and these landmarked

         19  designations is their conversion to new uses. It is

         20  my understanding that the new owners plan a

         21  residential conversion, which would entail care and

         22  restoration of the principle landmark features of

         23  the exterior, while altering the building to a new

         24  commercially viable use on the inside. And I think

         25  that is an important part of the story here.
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          2  Landmark designation doesn't pickle a building in

          3  any aspect forever, it is a flexible tool that can

          4  encourage and permit adaptive use of buildings to

          5  new and commercially viable uses.

          6                 Landmark distinction also helps the

          7  owners of commercial buildings. In fact, many newly

          8  built commercial buildings are labeled landmark, it

          9  is unfortunate that we could not trademark that

         10  designation, but in fact designated commercial

         11  landmarks have some commercial viability, in part

         12  because of that recognition because of their name.

         13                 So, its a kudo to the owners that

         14  they should be supportive of this, and I think they

         15  can look forward in turn to the Landmarks

         16  Conservancy support throughout their transformation

         17  and with our technical help and financial assistance

         18  if need be.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Lang. We prefer pickling and brine in this

         22  committee, aspect has never been our --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I have a

         24  question.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Mr. Lang, can you
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          2  come back?

          3                 Council Member Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you for

          5  that fascinating presentation. You say it took 20

          6  years to determine whether or not this was worthy of

          7  a landmark designation; is that what I heard?

          8                 MR. LANG: Well, there were surveys

          9  done as early as 20 years ago that identified this

         10  building. The process of bringing it forward didn't

         11  take 20 years. I think 20 years ago many who were

         12  active in preservation at the time thought this

         13  building should be landmarked, but it is only in the

         14  recent past with the Administration's initiative to

         15  designate buildings in Lower Manhattan, and to

         16  couple that with some tax advantages to the owners

         17  of commercial buildings, that the designation

         18  process has really proceeded. In the last six or

         19  seven years, if memory serves me correctly, an

         20  additional, better than two dozen buildings and a

         21  historic district, the Stone Street District, have

         22  been brought under the protection of a Landmarks law

         23  in Lower Manhattan. That is a tribute to the

         24  Commission, to the Administration, to this Council

         25  and to the building owners of Lower Manhattan who
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          2  get it now and who welcome and are living happily

          3  under landmarks regulation, in part because I think

          4  it contributes to the commercial viability of what

          5  they are trying to do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          7                 MR. LANG: You are welcome.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Mr. Lang, we have

          9  a question from a late arrival, Council Member

         10  Freed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Sorry, Roger.

         12                 I have a question on this one, do you

         13  know if they ever, on 150 Nassau, if there was ever

         14  any discussion of landmarking the interior of this

         15  building?

         16                 MR. LANG: My recollection is that it

         17  was discussed. There is an extraordinary interior,

         18  light court, courtyard within this building. It is

         19  presently, and for several decades, has been

         20  obscured from view. It was covered over sometime in

         21  the past, 1950s or '60s, and my understanding is

         22  that that poses problems for the Landmarks

         23  Commission designation because it is not now

         24  viewable by the public, which is a criterion under

         25  the Landmarks Law for its designation.
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          2                 The Conservancy is hopeful that the

          3  owners of this building will recognize the beauty of

          4  that, and what it contribute, for example, for a

          5  residential lobby to a residential experience in

          6  that building, and that they might either look to

          7  its designation or perhaps to a preservation

          8  easement or some other tool which might assure that

          9  the public could see it on a regular basis.

         10                 But the public accessibility is key

         11  to an interior designation and I guess it just

         12  didn't meet those tests.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right, because

         14  it is actually not residential, it is a commercial

         15  building.

         16                 MR. LANG: Not commercial, but my

         17  understanding is, and perhaps Mr. Hornstein can tell

         18  us more about this, the owners are contemplating a

         19  residential conversion. Again, that would be

         20  problematic with respect to public access to the

         21  interior.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

         25                 Commissioner Howard Hornstein of Fish
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          2  Bien and Badillo, representing 150 Nassau Street.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HORNSTEIN: Members of

          4  the Committee, I appear this morning on behalf of

          5  150 Nassau Street Equities, who is the new owner of

          6  the building, who has owned the building for less

          7  than a month. We appeared at the Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commission hearing when we were

          9  contract vendees, we support the designation of the

         10  interior of the building. We do intend to do a

         11  residential conversion of the building. There are

         12  issues involved with existing tenants in the

         13  building and their rights, as opposed to my clients

         14  rights, which is not an issue for the City Council,

         15  I believe, it's a landlord tenant issue.

         16                 We look forward to working with some

         17  of the tenants, there have been tenants in this

         18  building that haven't paid rent in two years, and I

         19  think they are a little upset about starting to pay

         20  rent, but nonetheless, this is not an issue for the

         21  designation. We fully support the designation, and

         22  we will adhere to the conditions that the Landmark

         23  Preservation Commission has set forth.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Freed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 Yes, since you support the

          5  designation of the exterior, there actually has been

          6  some work being done on the exterior of the building

          7  in the last month, and it was my understanding that

          8  that was done without the sign-offs of the

          9  Landmarks.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HORNSTEIN: As far as I

         11  know, the architect has received the Certificate of

         12  No Effect for the work that was done, we filed that

         13  with the Building Department. We have permits for

         14  all of the work that is going on in the building

         15  right now. I, myself, met with Commissioner Rivian,

         16  who is the Borough Commissioner, a week and a half

         17  ago. We filed updated plans, and as far as I know,

         18  as of today all permit issues have been resolved.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. I guess

         20  that hasn't been my understanding. And you may know,

         21  my office has been getting barraged with complaints

         22  about the building, and not only was it with some of

         23  the work that was done on the exterior, but

         24  obviously a lot of the interior work that is being

         25  done with permits that may have allowed for minor

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  alterations, but certainly not for the gut rehab

          3  that is going on.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HORNSTEIN: It is my

          5  believe, Councilperson, that I know of my own

          6  knowledge that I attended the meeting with

          7  Commissioner Rivian and an architect by the name of

          8  Gene Kauffman, new plans were filed, a new facade

          9  report was filed, a Certificate of No Effect from

         10  Landmarks was filed, and my checking as of today is

         11  that the Building Department issued a permit for the

         12  work in the building.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: That includes

         14  like ripping out all of the plumbing and the

         15  electricity, and the bathrooms?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HORNSTEIN: I can't speak

         17  to each plan that was approved, but there is a plan

         18  for the renovation for the building.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         20                 Council Member Freed, while we want

         21  to give you every opportunity to speak on this

         22  issue, it has nothing to do with the landmark

         23  designation, but the Mayor's --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, except

         25  for the exterior work, which we did have some
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          2  questions about.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Right. But our

          4  role under the Charter is only to either accept or

          5  reject Landmarks' determination, and if you want to

          6  reject it, they can pretty much do what they want.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: No, actually

          8  the only other question I would ask then, how would

          9  you feel about -- how does your client feel about

         10  landmarking the interior or parts of the interior?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HORNSTEIN: I can't speak

         12  to that because I don't know what their plans are

         13  for the actual renovation, but certainly we'll

         14  discuss it with Landmarks staff, and, again, Mr.

         15  Lang, in all respect, pointed out that you can't

         16  have an interior designation that isn't open to the

         17  public, so I don't know how we would do that.

         18                 But we are open to a discussion, and

         19  the dialogue with the Landmarks staff.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: All right,

         21  thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

         23                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HORNSTEIN: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: We have, I see
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          2  Jane Cowan from Landmarks is sort of asking to

          3  approach the witness table again, so we will bring

          4  her back, on this item, I guess.

          5                 Do you want to address Council Member

          6  Freed's question about the interior as well?

          7                 MS. COWAN: Thank you, Council Member

          8  Sabini.

          9                 I understand that this is not, your

         10  comments that it is not really your purpose here,

         11  you are here to affirm or reject, but I did want to

         12  address Council Member Freed's comments this

         13  morning.

         14                 We are aware of the situation, and

         15  this morning I did speak with our Violations

         16  Officer, my understanding is that there were two

         17  things: We did issue a CNE, a Certificate for No

         18  Effect, for interior alterations, which may or may

         19  not include the plumbing and all of that, which that

         20  was issued by our office.

         21                 However, what was not issued was work

         22  regarding replacement of the southern most

         23  storefront on Nassau Street, and for that a warning

         24  letter has been issued and we are, the owner is

         25  within his time frame to respond to that warning
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          2  letter, and when they respond to it, we hope to --

          3  that the replaced storefront will be cured or some

          4  sort of resolution will be reached.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Is there any

          6  problem with the work that was done with the facade?

          7                 MS. COWAN: It was -- this has been

          8  discussed with the architect. Our Deputy Counsel I

          9  know spoke with them about taking off the stone

         10  cladding over the main door.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right. Because

         12  I have been down there and it is kind of a shame.

         13  And the same way with the interior, this is a

         14  gorgeous building, even without seeing the atrium,

         15  that a lot of the interior work which had the

         16  original basically decorations that were done

         17  throughout the floors and most of them had been

         18  ripped off or are in a state now of disrepair, which

         19  is unfortunate because this building was very well

         20  kept up until recently.

         21                 MS. COWAN: Yes. Right. Right.

         22                 Well, again, to reiterate Mr. Lang's

         23  comment from before, there are issues that we have

         24  regarding public accessibility in the interior but

         25  in the future maybe that is something that could be
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          2  resolved.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Do you know of,

          4  and I guess I should have asked the attorney, if

          5  there was a change to switch this over, because my

          6  understanding is right now it is still commercial?

          7                 MS. COWAN: I think that would best be

          8  addressed by Mr. Hornstein.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         10                 MS. COWAN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, hearing no

         12  other items, I will now go over the calendar,

         13  hopefully we will have a clerk up here and we will

         14  have one question answered before we move on.

         15                 So, if you have an agenda, it is page

         16  three of the hymnal.

         17                 Land Use 503. Queens Community Board

         18  4, LPC designation, Fire Engine Company 289, Ladder

         19  Company 138, will be coupled.

         20                 Council Member Freed, are we happy on

         21  507 now? We are happy on 507?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, I am

         23  sorry. I was just wondering, it was my understanding

         24  there were some tenants who were supposed to

         25  testify, but --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: They have not

          3  come forward as of yet.

          4                 If there is anyone here to testify on

          5  507, step up to the plate now.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, Land Use

          8  507, Manhattan Community Board 1. Landmarks

          9  Commission Designation the American Tract Society

         10  Building in Council Member Freed's district, will be

         11  coupled.

         12                 Land Use 509, Queens Community Board

         13  7. Fort Totten Historic District, in Council Member

         14  Abel's district will be laid over.

         15                 Land Use 510. Manhattan Community

         16  Board 2. The NoHo Historic District in the Districts

         17  of Council Members Freed and Lopez, will be laid

         18  over.

         19                 Land Use 515, Brooklyn Community

         20  Board 1, the Landmarks Designation of the

         21  Williamsburg Branch of the Brooklyn Public Library,

         22  Council Member Fisher's district, will be coupled.

         23                 We are still holding open, hope that

         24  before we close we can deal with Land Use 516, but I

         25  am not going to call the vote on that yet.
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          2                 The preconsidered item in the

          3  Manhattan Community Board 1, the Park Row Building,

          4  Landmark Designation of the Park Row Building in

          5  Council Member Freed's district will be coupled.

          6                 And the preconsidered item in

          7  Brooklyn Community Board 4 of the School

          8  Construction Authority, acquisition for playground

          9  expansion of PS 274 in Council Member Robles'

         10  district, will be coupled.

         11                 And in the case of Land Use 516,

         12  which is the siting for DCAS and the Law Department,

         13  we are going to hold it open, hopefully we are going

         14  to hear something before we close the business of

         15  either this Subcommittee or the Joint Subcommittee,

         16  or we will vote tomorrow morning before the Land Use

         17  Committee.

         18                 So, I am going to ask the Clerk to

         19  call the roll. Once again, the coupled items are

         20  503, 507, 515, the preconsidered items in Manhattan

         21  Community Board 1, and Brooklyn Community Board 4.

         22                 Clerk, please call the roll.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Carrion.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Abel.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

          8  four in the affirmative, none in the negative, the

          9  items are approved and referred to the full

         10  Committee on Land Use and the vote is still open.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: We are going to

         12  hold the vote open for one more Committee member.

         13  The oversight portion of the hearing will commence

         14  once the other Subcommittee finishes their business

         15  next door. So, people should stay nearby, and when

         16  they see that Committee closes down, then we will

         17  restart, and hopefully we will also have an answer

         18  on Land Use 516, and we will try to keep members

         19  here or vote in the morning. Thank you.

         20                 I declare the meeting in recess.

         21                 (Recess taken.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Can I hold a

         23  vote? My Subcommittee is still open, and we have one

         24  item that I want to hold a vote on, since Council

         25  Member Perkins is leaving, and that would be Land

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  Use 516, Brooklyn Community Board 2, in Council

          3  Member Fisher's district. Anyone here from DCAS? Do

          4  you want to just tell us what the result is, while I

          5  have a quorum.

          6                 Identify yourself for the record,

          7  please.

          8                 MR. FLEMMING: Good afternoon. My name

          9  is Chris Flemming, I am Director of Strategic

         10  Planning with the Division of Real Estate Services.

         11                 Councilman Fisher has asked DCAS to

         12  make a commitment that they won't increase agency

         13  allocated on-street parking within a five-block

         14  radius of the proposed Law Department site at 50

         15  Washington Street.

         16                 The Law Department has agreed to

         17  commit to not requesting on-street parking at all in

         18  the area. This site is to be used exclusive for

         19  storage and there are no City employees working at

         20  the facility. A letter from the Law Department

         21  stating such will be forthcoming.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: That's a promise?

         23                 MR. FLEMMING: That's a promise.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay. Clerk,

         25  please call the roll.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Sabini.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          5  Perkins.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Abel.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of three in

         10  the affirmative, none in the negative with no

         11  abstentions, the aforegoing items are approved and

         12  referred to the full Committee on Land Use.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:15 p.m.)
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